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ARCHIVES & LOCAL STUDIES SERVICE TOWNSHIP PACKS

USER GUIDE

This pack is one of a seties produced in order to provide resource material which will
form a starting point for anyone researching the history of a particular township. The
packs follow a standard format, with occasional slight variations reflecting the

' characteristics of individual townships. '

Each pack opens With the Dbmesday Book entry for the township, or for a place
which may be regarded as ifs “ancestor”, A facsimile, transcript, and English version
are provided. -

This is followed by the relevant extract from the Victoria County History of
Lancashire, which briefly traces the history of the township, chiefly in terms of the
local landowning families and the church, .

- The “meat” of the pack comes in the form of extracts from five Directories, spaced at

. roughly equal intervals from 1825 to 1924, As well as providing basic information,
they also furnish data which can be collated and analysed to investigate a variety of
local history topics, It should be noted that these extracts do not by any means
constitute complete directory coverage of the township. The local area library will be

-able to indicate what other county directories are available, though it is unlikely to
hold themall, . . .

The directories are complemented by a statistical abstract from the Census of 1821
and that of 1831, plus a Population Summary, 1801 — 1971, These two exfend the
petiod for which basic information is available beyond that covered by the directories.

The next section comprises four Maps: Ordnance Survey extracts (6” to 1 mile, or the
modern 1: 10,000 equivalent), covering dates from the mid 19th century to the second
half of the 20th. These will show older buildings now demolished and indicate
development of the area oyer the past 150 years. .

Lastly comes a Reading List, which we hope will prove helpful. Some at least of the
items on it will bé available for loan via branch libraries, whilst the remainder (plus
additional material) will be available for reference either at larger libraties or af the
Record Office.

Poor quality or condition of some originals occasionally prevents copies in the packs
being as clear as we would like. 'We have, however, always tried to produce the best
possible copy. ' :

We hope that you will find this pack useful. If you have any comments ot
suggestions, we will be pleased fo hear from you at the Cheshire Record Office, Duke
Street, Chester CH1 1RL.
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Note: Neither WOatston nor Martinscroft is named In Démesday Book.

They were pres:tmably included in one or more of the manors of
Warrington.
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WOOLSTON WITH 'MARTINSCROFT

Ulfiton ¢. 1147 3 Wlfiton, 1175-82,

Waoolston to the west and Martinscroft to the east

extend along the bank of the River Mersey, and
together-form a joint township containing an area of
1,566} statute acres, of which Woolston, proper has

1,258 ‘The township lies wholly upon the upper
mottied sandstone of the bunter series of the new

- ved sandstons, 'The high road from Warrington tor

Manchester passes-through it,
Cut, a short canal belonglng t

and the Woolston New
o the Manchester Ship

Canal, passes throuwgh Woolston and shortens, the
waterway of the Mersey and Irwell Canal by avoiding
somhe of the wumerons windings of ‘the River. Mersey.
In 1901 there were in the joint township 484. persons,
There ave 4 number of small Jandowners here, the

fand belog let:in small tenements,
There is a parish counil,

The flat country is dividéd jnto fields with rather

meagre hedgerows and scanty trees,

The alluvial end |

sandy soil appeats fertile, ylelding good crops of
potatoes and turnips, oats, wheat, and clover, whilst

many A marshy corner is

dovoted to the cultivation of

osiérs for the manufacture of potato-hampers and
Sskips In the north of the district there s a cone

siderable patch of mossland,
good deal of clay in the- surfa
there are moidt pasturess
entirely employed in agricu

making.

.

and here too thers is a
ce soil. By the river
The inhabitants are
ltural labour and basket-

- . " Thy cansun vaport of 1901 gives the
total arez a8 1,623 acres, of which 47 are

Jaland water
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The descent of OOLSTON corresponds with that
of the neighbowring manor of Poulton,
MANOR Bothwere in 1094 bestowad upon the
abbey of St Poter of Shrewsbury by
Count Roger of Poiton}! and both’ passed-pro-
bably by purchase—to the lord of Makerfield ghbout
the reign of Henry II, From that date Woolston was
held by a number of free tensnts as of the barony of
Newton in Makerfield, The names of those exist-
ing batween 1175 and 1182 ara recorded in a chaster
of Ralph, abbot of Shrewsbury, granting to them in
fee the riddings or asarts of the ¢Eyes’ lying within
2 ditch by the water of Mersey for 21 pence yearly,
and one ‘land” or acre strip. from erch tenant for
ever as an obit? I 1292 two-
thirds of the manor wers *held
by Robert de Woolston, whose
ancestors had heen enfeoffed by
Robert Banastre, sometime lord
of Newton in Makerfleld? The
remaining third part was held
by Richard de Moston, Jord of
Poulton, in »ight of his wife
Alice, daughter of Gilbert de
Haydack, whose ancestor had
likewisa been enfeoffed by Robert
Banastre  This third part de-
.scended In the same succession
a3 the manor of Poulton., Some considerable part of
it was held In 1292 by Richard ton of Emma de
Woolston by the yearly service of 815
Robert son of Omm de Woolston, who was living
in 1203, had lssue by Alice his wife four sons, Adam,
father of Agnes; by his wife Ellen, whom he divorced;?
Richard his helr, living in 1313, when he was auing
Richard de Moston and Alice his wife for making
sale and destruction in thelr common wood and tur
bary inWoolston; # Simon, living in 1 309;° and John,

Woorsron or Woors-
wor. Arpend, o wolf
pastant sadle, "

described a3 John ton of Robert Ormeson® in 1318,.

when Hugh de Woolston recovered against him and

L Parrery Laner, Pipe Re 270 et veq,
2 Ibld. 287
8 Anszo R, 408, mu 41d,  About the

4 Auslze R, 408,
year 1285 Robert Banastre gays ta Robert

‘wopd of Ferntheued for &4, at 8t Pater's
Chalns, See Raines MSS,
my 43 dy 66,
£ Ibid, m, Gz2d.y

Alice his mother two messuages in this* vl Ip
1326 and 1332 Richard de Woolston, Richard and
Robert de Martinsoroft, Simon son of Robert, Henry
le Wolf and John de Hepay were the principal owners
of landM In 1349 Kmms, relict of Richard de
Woolston, was claiming her dower in the manor of
Woolston against Robert de Woolston her son and
Alice his wife, and in six messuages, 36 acresof land,
and gos of rent in this vill against Alice, reliet of
Henty lo Wolfl®® Rabert de Woolston ¢of the Ferny-
heued,’ died bofore 1367, in which year Agnes his
relict was sued by Thomas de Southworth for 2 mes-
suage and 100 acres of land which she held In dower,
and for waste which she had made in the wood of
Woalston, ¥ ‘

In 1359 the abbot of Shrewsbury brought & writ
of novel diseisin before the justices at Lancaster
against Robert son of Robert de Woolston touching
fenements hers, but did not prosecute his writ,®
Four years later the abbot successfully traversed the
finding of an inquest taken for the king to the effect
that one of the king’s progenitors had given 4 plat
of land, called Wyldegreve, a fishery in the manor,
and 2on of tent In Woolston, to find 2 monk to
celebrate divine service daily for ever in the chapel
of Wyldegreve for the souls of the kings of England,
which chantry had been withdrawn for many years
past, the lands belng worth yearly 245 and the
fishery 20s,. An inguest found that the abbot and
his pradecessors had held the’tenements time out of

- mind of the gift of Ranulf) earl of Chester, in free

alms, whereupon judgement was given for the abbot
with restitution of the tenements, the issues, and the
fishery,

The descent of the family of Woolston is some-
what obscure during this timel! In 1401 Hugh de
Woolston was in possession of the smanor® By the
marriage of his daughter Anuabel (or Elizabeth) to
John de Hawarden of Hawarden, co, Flint, the
manor passéd to the last-named:family® In 1432

xxxvilly 41z (z),  Gllbert of the same place, John de Hepay
brx(e) of Woolston, Rahel;t son of Roger de

2lto 1, 6 and m,  Waolston, Henry e Wolf of Woolston,

de Samlesbury 3 acres of land with
common of pasture {n Woolaton,, begln-
ning- af the Luche towards the north by
Leyynges Croft znd contlnuing -bstween
the mows and the brook until 3 acres were
fully completedy Ralnes MSS, {Chet,
leo), xxxvlily 400 2 '

In 1290 Robett lord of Woolston ex-
changed land in Woolston for other land
hetween FHelecroRt on the east snd the
Outlonz on tha west, with Willlam de
Midelton and Amerla his wife, dawghtar
of Robert le Boteler, of whosa Inheritanca
it was 3 Towneley MS, HH, n, 184z,

As Robiert, ford of Woolston, ke gavs
to Robert son of Orm da Pasforfonc in
fee 2 plats of laad In Woolston, vlz (1) bes
ginndng at the land' formerly Adam de

. Midelton's on ths noxth, folfowlng ths”

ditch which the same Robert ratied there
towards the east, to the highway leading
from Poulton to the wood of Ferntheued,
and 4o following thé ditches on the south
againat the highway to the land of Adam
Ie Reda of Rixton | {2) beglnalng b the
same highway on the west, followlng in
Ieugth by the land of Peter ds Midelton
to the land of Andrew de Midelton, and
to the land of ‘Willlam Fox n the ‘east, »,
following ditches touthward to the Out-

* Jone, with extovers and pantisge quitIn the

63 In 2323 Willlam de Moston tew
leaxed to Robart son of Willlam son of
Tylle (Titlesson) o} seres {n Woolston

. snd Poulton, which Richard de Moston

father of Willlam gave to Richard son of
Emmay Raines MSS, xxxvilly 407, m 3.
Sce*CA;. Clore R 3288-96, p, 282,

¥ Lancw: Ing. and Estents (Ree, Sac,
Lanes, and Ches,), 276, .

7 Assize R, 423, m, x4\

8 D& Banc, R, 198,.m. §6,

¥ Ausize R, 423,
* 100 1343 Robert son of Richard de
Moston gave to Cecily daughter of Robert
del Wode and o Richatd her sldest son
and his {ssue the lands and bulldings in
Voolston and Poulton which had belonged
to Alice daughter of Richard Ormesson,
motherof the sald Ceclly, with remainders
fo John son of Matthew de Southworth
by Agnes Drynkals, to Gltbert son of the
said Matthew, to Godlth snd Mar, a1y
daughters of the sald Matthewy Ralunes
MSS, xxxviily 409, # 2,

1 De Bane: Ro221, m, 57,4 R, 223, °

m, 114,

% Lanet, Lay Sub, bdle, 140, », § and
S In Michaclmay term, 1328, Wik
Ham Lambe of Warrngton™ sed In
the King’s Bench for zo marks debt,
Richard de Woolston, Rlchard son of

332
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and Richard de Standys of Orford § Da
Bane, R. 275, m. 152§ 276 m, 190,
;: I%adBanc. R 387, m 1184,

Ibids R 429, @, 453 3 432, W, 347
In xisg Thoma? son ofs 0]’_ bert de South-
worth withdrew a ples sagalnt Richard
ton of Robert de Woolston of the Fernya
head and. Agnee relict of Robert dle
Wooliton § Ausize R, 438, m, 4 In
1336 Agnes daughter of Simon son of
Robert son of Orme reléased to Thomat
de Southworth a messuage fn the ‘Ferny-
head {n Wooliton 3 Townetey MS, HH,

# 1634,

s lgichy of Lane, Asslze R, 4, . 6,
o}“ (j‘g. Plac, Lane, -N’g, 10, See Cal.

ot Ry x427~30, p, 478,

#Ia a complaint by';l'.“homas Hawarden
the eler In 1536{3) his pedigtes Is thus
traced 3 Richard de ‘Woolston—s, Richard
1, Hugh—s, Rohert—y, Hugh—d, An-
nabel—s, Thamas Huwarden, the plaintiff,
who had a son Thomarj Star Chamb.
Proe: Hen, VIIT, xxi) 330 vity 247,

18 Pyl, of Lanc, Plea B, 1, m, 7

¥In w427 Richard Walker, rector of
Woartlngton, asd other feoffess rastorad
cettzin of Hugh de Woolston's Inads in
Mactlaseroft to him, with remalnder to
Anaabel, his daughter, vilfe of John de
Hawarden ) Towneley M3, 00, , 126 I8

2b

Robart de i‘vtartlnueroft, Richard ton of
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John Hawarden and Elizabeth his wife were
frecholders fu Poulton and Woolston! His son
Fhomas Hawarden? had a son Thomas, who died
. before 1513, in which year.
Joan his wife gavs 2o marks
for the marriage of her son
John, which Sir Thomas Boteler
claimed in respect oflands held
of *him In Warsington! Im
1¢24 Johh Hawarden was
amerced fof not appearing at
a conrt held at Warrlngton to
do his suit for the same lands
He died in 1556-7 seised of
this manor and of lands in
Halewood*  Adam his son,
aged thirty years in 15567,
entered his pedigres at-the visi-
tation of William Flower in 1567 The manor was
. settled upon him by his father John Hawarden by fine
“in 15487 He died 6 Rebrvary, 1596~7,° his only
son having predecessed him, Elizabeth, daughter of
Adem, had marfled Alexander, son and helr of
Edward Standish of Standish,
in 1575 and in 1581 Adam
Hawarden and Alexander Stand-
ish had conveyed the manor
rand family estates by fine to
trustees,™® as Alexander Btandish
and Elizabeth his wife likewise
did in 16092 ‘The’ manor
subsequently ~descended  with
Standish wntil March, 1870,
when the hall Was sold to the
present owner, Mr; John Ben-
“nett, by the Standish trustees,
with the consent of the late
Charles Henry Lionel Widdrington Standish, The
tmancrial rights, If any,! were reserved by the

vendors,1* T
In 1278 Robert 1on of Alan le Norreys of Halsnead

HAWARDIHN OF
Woorsron, Argemh
Luittds de poix and @ feise
nebuly 1able,

Sranpny or Stanp«
158, Sable, three stand-
ng dishet argent,

The same yolutne containe a few other

VICTORIA HISTORY OF LANCASHIRE
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6 Chat, Soc, by 87,

2¢c

WARRINGTON

and Agnes his wife clalmed estovers in Robert de:
Woolston's wood in' Woolston, which they had been
wed to enjoy® John son of the same Robert in

*1323 and again-in 1332 sought to recover a messuage

and two oxgangs of land here from Richard son of:
Hugh de Woolston,

The funlly of Southworth of Samlesbury held an
estate here from an early periods In 1432 Thomas
Seuthworth died selsed of Jands held of John Hawarden
and Blizabeth his witfe!? Richard Sonthworth died
in 1472, and Christopher his son in 1487, seised of
the same, held of Thomas Hawarden by the yearly
rent of 14, In tgoz Ralph Anderton claimed the
premises,’® The subsequent descent is unknown,

Ralph Culchsth died in 1564 seised of a small
estate here, which he held of Adam Hawarden in
sacage by a yearly free rent of 35 William his
bastard son and helr alienated it in 1867 to Thomas
Walmesley of Showley,”® who died seised of the same
in 1584.% It descended in 1612 to .Thomss, ton
and heir of Robert Walmesley of Coldcotes® amd
probably passed with the other estates of this family.

MARTINSGQROFT'® was, as the name suggests, o
several enclosure within the manor of Woolston,
Gilbert de Martinscroft held land here in the time
of Edward I,¥ and Richard his-son was one of the
largest contributors hera to the subsidy of 13263
By his wife Agnes, daughter of ‘John de Shaw, he
had isste two danghters, Godith and Margery, who
with thelr husbands wers claiming, a- messuage and
lands here in 1346-against Robert, son and heir of
the sald Richard de Martinscrofty and Richard’s
widow, Margery de Edgeworth. -

Richard FHoughton, Ellen Hawarden, Adam
Hawarden, and “Richard Bruch, as Jandowners in
‘Woolston, contributed to a subsidy in Mary's reign.®’
The only frecholder recorded in 1600 was Alexander
Standish'®  Sir Peter Legh and Ralph Standish were
the landowners paying to the subsidy in 1628, in
Poulton and Woolston” * "Richard Bodth was in
1653 allowed to contract for tivo-thirds of his estate

He held Jands  Standish as tenant o tall male whic‘h.

deeds of the Hawatden family 5 thue John,
son of Thomas ds Hawarden and William
his son about 1 39:? had lands Ig. Cheshire;
m 1237, 1240, In 1474 John, son and
helr gg ,_Tohrqz‘ H:wardcqz lag: of Chester,
beld tlste manor of Statham In Lymmg
1t 1245,

1 Ladety III?A P {Chet. SOC}), 1iy &}isc
Hugh de Hawsrden and Agnes hls wife
occtit ing Wartlogtonsuitin 13573 Duchy
of Lanc, AnizeR. 6, nu 6y and (ot 3)
1, 1y Final Gonts by 156,

3 \Writof Diem elausit extefasued 16 Hen,
VII(t) 3 Towacjey MS; CC, (Chaty Lib), .
#9723, Thedatesin the text do not agree
with the Stat Chanbet Pleading of  pre-
ceding note, In 1485 Thomas Legh of
High Legh appolated Thomas Hawarden
one of the executors of his wilt {Ree, Soc.
Lanck and Ches, xxx,23) ¢ and In 1486

ohn Hulton of the Park in his will
desoribes him 28 hls brothery {bid, 24,
Thomas Hawarden‘purchased tie Statham
Iands In: Lymm In 14836, and Thomas,
ton and heirapparent of Thomas Hawarden
of Wooliton, made a firther purchase ln
1492-3 § Ormerod, Ghen (edy Helsby),

By 584 .
! §M{:c. {Rec. Soc, Lanct, and Ches.)y

1, 29y
! *'{'lef: of Farr, {Chet, Sac)y-431,
k Duchy of Lane, Ing, po 10y %) #e 33«

in Stathamt and Lynim of Richard Legh
;t ;he Iatter's death In 1§32 5 Ormerod,
by 453 .

7-P3a1. of Lane, Feet of F, bdle. 134
ms 210,

8In the Inquet taken after the death
of Adam Hawarden, 13 Mar. 1598, it
was found that Anne Hawarden, %lf -
beth the wife of Alexander Standish, Jane
the, wife of Thomas Flower, Margaret the
wife of Richard Ashton of Bamfurlong,
Ellen the wife of' Rdward Standish, jun,,
Tsabel the wife of Hugh Adlington, and
Clemance Hawarden, were his daughters
and helrs j Culcheth D, fa Lanes, and Ches,
Hirt, and Gedeal, Notity 1y 1564

© Lanes, Ings po e {Rec. Soc, Lanes, and
Chesy Iy 187

10Pal, of Lane. Feet of B, bdle, 43,
t 393 the estate was described s
twenty miewwaged, &¢y 2 water-milly, a
dovecote, 2,300 seres of land, meadow
and pasturé ia Woolstan, Fearnhezd,
Brughe, Poulton, Marscroft [Martins-
croft], and Halewood, .
1LTbid, bale, 75 m 38, '
1 Information supplled by Mr, Bennett,
through his solicltors, Meases, Robert
Davies & Co,, Warrington, whostate that
by his will of 1807 Edward Towaley
Stzadlsh made Charles Standish tenant for
Jifs with remaindee to Charles H, L, W\

333

.

estate tail was afterwards barred,
18Dz Baties R 24y 1 384, 674,
HIbide R 248, m. 149dy 299,
my 143 de .
18 Lager, Inge po m {Chet Sog), 1

is Duchy of Lane, Ing, pan illy #. 41,

10;:
7Tbid. xl, me 340 ‘
1BPal of Lang, Feet of P bdlew 26

m. 96# .
+ WDuchy of Lanes Ings p me xlv, m

72

WV Abid, xxy 1e 4o

81 ¥artineseroft, Rdw, I

1By deed nds Roger of the Hunit of
Culcheth gave to Norman de Culcheth
laud in Symondeshurat in Culchath, which
he had by the gift of Richard de Mactlns-
¢rofty and all his mait-fall and paeture In
the land which was Ulphld’ the son of
Dolphin de Bedford, and all the herbage
which Richard de Marthnseroft gave him
to the east of Glaze Brook, rendering arn
venty Lanct, and Cher Histe and Geneal,
NOM& i, 20

83 Lancs, Lay Sub, bdle, 130,17, 5,

% Do Banc R 348, m 2484,

25 Mascy of Rixton Dy

38 Mite, {Re¢, Soa Lanct, aud Ches.),

i, 1;8.
+ 8 Nords Dy (BM), "
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sequestered for his recusamcy?  Richard: Booth and
‘A%liiam Caldwell, recdmaker, ns *Papists,” registered  ° .
small, estates in 17574 . R
A family named Willme rgsided at Martinscroft in-
the gseventeenth and eighteénth “centurles; one of
them, John Willme, who died in 1767, was a mathe-
maticlan and astrologers® - - .. ,
The land-tax retums of 1787 show thay Bdward -

 Standish, Henry Pickering, and —— Strickland were.

the chief ownets of the soil,

The enclosure award (with plan) for the township
is preseryed at the County Couneil 6ffices, Preston, .

A Weslepan Methodist chapel was built at Magting..
cioft in 1827, . .

he Hawarden family and their successors, adhering
ta the Roman Catholic faith at the Reformationy,
afforded sheltér to the missionary priests during the
Himes of proscriptiont The domestic chapel of
Woolston Fall was served by the English Bene-
dictines until the beginning of last .century,® when
it was demolished. ‘The present church of 8t, Peter,
opened in 1835, is in the hands of secular clergy.®

, X Ryyalie Qomp. Papers (Reo, Sve,  Rixton in 31813y Glllow, fn T }
a;igﬂﬂlxdam;'z;t. ,‘i, 209, Sa?éNegi Selr. y zdii, 14.6.’ rann Hit
\ Cathy Non-jurors, 135, dverpool Cath

‘Fof an ncco‘untJoE him :?-,c Pal, Notz Liswrp Gath dan 3gon
Rook, 1,,317, x93 ..

44 ‘tearch by the priest-huaters at
Woolstan Hall in the early hours of 3
Feb, momivg In 1584 ls reported in
Foleyy Ree i1 iy x39, - N

In 1590 Adam Hawarden of Woolsten,
though n some degree, of conformity, ' :
was yet ¢In general note of evil affection ’
in teliglon and a non-communicant’ §

Lydiate- Hally, 245 (quoting 5,P, Dom..
Eliz. ECMY, L 5: . N

A falr number- of nameés appesr in the
recusant roll of x64x ¢ Trdnsi Hith St
{New Sen), xivy 244, .

L v Bene;li’etinel ave Jown to have
<baen in charge from edrly in the eighteenth
cetitury, The Jast of the line moved to

334
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. BA}NES’S HISTORY, DIRECTORY & GAZETTEER OF LANCASHIRE, 1825

WARRINGTON PARISH.—OuT Townsuirs.

BURTON WOOP, 4 miles
yinglon.

EFERNHEAD, 8 mis. NE. of Warrington.
GLAZEBROOK, T mls. ENE. of Warrington,

ITOLLINFARE, or HOLLIRE
ENE. of Warrington.

Mrarked Y, veslde af Burfon
wued 3 R, al Hollins green 13,
ué Pawllon, & 4, at Feolslon.

4 Brimelow John, ¢Homse am!
Juckey'

4 Caldwell Ino. ¢ Rope&eAnchor®

¢ Caldwoll Juseph, overseer

£ ClaraPeter, ¢ Red Lion®

2 Dale Rev. P, S.curate  *

Fitchett James, gent. Orford

3 Flint Henry & Co. wipg. che-}

mlsts, & hone works
1 Gaskell Mrs.-Sarak

* & [owitt W, overseet, &c.

W, of War-

Gnesy, Gniles

MARTINSCROFT, 8 mis. E. of Wi

POULTON, 2§ miles NE. ol‘\'mrimo&

RIXTON, 5} miles ENE. of Wnﬁnm
rington. (Name: with Wm'mgmn.)

. WOGLSTON, 8 milet E. of Waninglon..
VILLAGE DIRECTORY OF WARRINGTON PARISH,

Homby Hon. Laey, Orfard hall
4 Jacksan Johu, gont. Fernkead
2 Johnson Nhnen,"Esgle& Child!

ton collage
1 WHllington Enoch, ‘Pear Tree®
2 Ormrod John, ' White Lion®
1 Ratciiffe Thos ¢ Chapel hs.!
- & Sephton Johu, paxish clerk
2 Speakman Win. ¢ Swan'

Dullam
3 Spencer Rd. ¢ Dog &Pnrtt!dge'
£ Toft John W. ¢Oid Ited Jion’

3 Lioyd Mrs. Sophla, Pudding-

Speucer Thos. ear(henmre mfr} 3 Imt Peter

& WilkInson Saml. ¢ Stocke
Woolt X Ohn‘l’xr‘ﬁﬂ‘z &e. Rizlog
4 Wilght Rev. Wm.

2 ¥atex Whn., vick. * Packet®

B} TroREN; ki
1 Foster Thos. |1 Brldy]u..

4 Wﬁccck Jph.
WHRRLWGHT

3



WORRALL'S DIREGTORY OF WARRINGTON, 1871 .

-

. WOOLSTON with MARTINBCROFT,

A joint townahip, in the ecoledinstionl Slstrich of Padgate,is pitusbed -on"the: \
rqad from Wu&m to Manchester, and comptises sn ares of 1,444 statute soves, .ﬁ:‘e!
population in 1801 was 496, and in 1871, BOL. | ) .3

Woolston is aboub 8} miles from Warrington, & southwet from Lefgh, wad 16 i
m , n‘:; Bolbon, in the parish, union and county court districk of Warrington and kmgxmg

 Derby. : }
; Maxtinsoroftja pituated on ‘the banks of theriver Mersay. About half s milefrom Woalsiyy

- there re two ohapels in the towiahip, one belonging ko the Wesieyan body pud the other thy
Roman Catholica. : )

Post Offioo.—Letters through. ‘Warringfoa, which i¢ the nesresb mioney orderaffige—i
Nicholas Mansey, vecoiver; delivery, 8 a2, snd daspatehed ab 8 pan. -

Romen Uatholic School (St Peter's), Woglaton—-—Elixibe%h Battershy, mistress,

Cartor Rev. John (Roman Oatholic), Murtins- Hephard James, farmer, Martineorofs .
. ~oraf , Hepperd Thomas, farmer, Yroalsion . 1
Daniel Mr, Joseph, Martinacroft  Hilton George, relierl cor and regiving
.. Hankingon Mr. James Eef %hnlma dﬁrﬁm. %ohii:g .
 Foughton In mer, Woolston* .
. COMMERCIAL. - Houghtou Joseph, jun, farmer, Woolston
ml'o&n, basketmaker, Woolston Houghton Thowmas, farmer, ‘Woolstor
man James, toll gate keeper; “arking | Howsrth George, former, Wartingerelt
orofl- : Tohuson. Ralph, baskebmaker, Weolston
Caldwell John, fariner, Martinsoroft Mestoy Jemes, Horto and Jockey Jum, sg
Olare Willism, bricklayer, Woolston - fariner, Woulston
Clarke Asron, farmer; Woolsbon Massey Nicholan, graces, m«,‘Wa&k{
Olarke Jozepk, bear yebailer, Markinsoroft Meispy Williers, er, Martinsoroft N
Olarke Peter, farmar, Woolston _ | Nowton Margavel, farmer, Martingeveft ¢
Crank Joreph, fsxmer, Woolaton Qrritt Abrshan, hiaoksmith, ‘Woalsten .
e Jobm, - Wlackamith, and Rope end | Orrith William, wheelwzight, Wodlshon -
Anchor Inn, Woclston Owon James, fcrme:,’Wdohton 3
Dennatt Poter, farmer, Mertinscroft Platt Mary A., farmer, YWaolaton. .
Ditghfleld James, fustien cutlar, Martinaorofi | Platt Georgs, faxmr, Wadlston
_ Dumbill Toke, faxmer, Weclabon Rathhone Sawuel, farmer, Woolsbon
Fsichurst Willism, former, Woolston Taylor Yohn and Thomas, farmers, Woolthn
Gollop William, fustian oculter, Harbinsaroft | Warburton Jeeso, fermer, Woolsten
Gatley John, shosmsker, Martinecrofs Wileook D&ﬁ&,ziqﬁ or, Martinserofs
Haughton James & Williao, faxmers, Waolston: | Wood George, faxmer; Woolston




-

KELLY'S DIRECTORY, 1887

“Woolaton with Martinforoft isa joint’ m?hshii:,
the former being abous g} miles eastirom Warringtod rails
way station .on the.Toad from Warrington tg Manchester,
Marringorofy is about helf 2 mile south from Woolatén; on
the banks of the viver Mersey, The Woolston new cut iz &
canal over & mile in length, belonging to the Bridgewater
r{aéxg-atton Go. Limlited, Hers is & Catholic chapst dedi-
oa

1o Gt Mary and & Weslayen chapél, Al thelandis |

fiold in small holdings. The avea is 1,518 acres of land and
48 water; Tateabls vilue, £4,501 ¢ tha populdtion in 188«
a8 504 .

-Leter Box cleared ab s.55. pan. T.obtera through War-
rington, which is thé nearest moncy order & telegraph
office. Delivery, .10 a.m. dispatehy £.58 p.ra. } no de-
livery or dispatch on sundays .

Somoong:— v g ! . .
Catholi¢, Martinstroft (mixed), builk in 2840, for xzo chile -

. dren; average attendancy, 46 ; mivbiess, vacgnb .
National, Waolston, built in 1885, for Tscohildran; ayerage
ajtondance, 603 }:Iiss Ellon Tutner, inistiess !

Woolston.  *-
Crank Josaph
Walsh Rev. W, [Catholic], Chapel ho

. COMMERCIAT, .
Bibby Jag. basket, skip & haniper ma
Blhby John, basketyakip & humpet ma
Caldwell Joseph, boot & shos maker
Glarke Aaron, farmer ' e
Clarke Pater, farmer
Dalntith James, Rope & Anchor »ar. &
wheslwright - -
Dainfilnedsmes, . jon, blacksmith &
. veglstrar of births &deaths fov Rixton
subdistviot, Wirrington tnfon
Daintith Thomas, fatmer
Dumbell Luke, farmer .
Houghton James j Willlam, farmers,
Yyilgrave farm N
Houghton fsaac, farmer, Woolston halt
Houghton Joseph, farmer
Houghton Thomag, [atmer -
Platy Mar{ Ann (Iqu.), farmer
Wainwright Willlam, farmer & market -
gaydener A
‘Warburton Isaac, farmer
Waod Geotge, farmer»  °

. Maxtinsoroft.
Henklnson James .
Yatwood Thomas | .
COMMERCIAL, .
Bate Richard, markebgardenée
Bolton Thomag, farmer ' -
Caldwell Thomas, frme. Juniper lodge
Ellam David, farcher & Hile eutter -
Pairhurat Oharles, farmer
Gatley John, boot & ahao maker
Lythzoe Teaac, fustisn cuttey
. Musgay Willlam & Thomss, {armers
"Mnst%oy Alice (Mre.)shopheapsr, & post
0 ‘. .

.
MR

s

LY

0o .
Masgey Dayid,.(armet .
}iassoy James, Horse & Jockey ».1. &
¢ favmer
Newton William, farmer-

Orrett Abrabamy, blacksmith
Orestt Williamy, wheelweight

Owon Jphnpfarmer .
Taylor Robert, shopkesper

JWilson Avderdi} carrier.



.

KELLY’S DIRECTORY, 1905

WOOLSTON with MARTINSOROFT Is a joint townehly, the
former bolng on tha tnad from Wartlngton to Manohester, gbon&
3 miles epst from Warrln g!on Central rallway atdtlon. farilnz-
erofty on the barke of the r\’sr Meraeg i3 a!wnt Wl & mile
south from Woolston, V7oolston *new out 4 & canal overs .
mita in length, beIongIng io the deﬁlevute: iindertaking of the
Mnncheam Shtp Cansl) o, The Catholle *chapel at Wooteton.
bullt In*1834, and dedleated o R, Peter, is & struoture of brick
fn tha Gothlo style, and hes thres #taindd windows: § will weat
Ut 200 persons. A% MarHnaoroft {s a Weslayan chapel, bullg
in 1827. 1l the land is held In 2mall ho!dln;{ The eres is
1,578 atres of land and 47 of wlery.ratesble va ue, £4,798; ths
popu\a.ﬂon in 190t was 484

Post Oflce.—~M(xy  Barah Ltsssay. b stmutteas.‘ Lettcrs
through Wm!ﬂgbon, dellvery, 7 am.; dtapatch, 8.45 oo’ &
4.45 & 7,90 p.m. No delWerq or_glagateh -on nundm. Poytad .
Orden ara {asued & pald here, Padgste fs tha nearést mohsy
order officd, & Warrington (near Cemelary); 2§ miles dintank,
the néarest telegraph offles

e . HOHOOLS, * -, .t .

Publio Elemnentary, Woolston (mixid), bunlfy ln 1836, for 150
cl': {ldren; averag'e atkandance, 78 L{w hard Ryder master

Cathollc,” Martnsoroft Smixea), bullt n 1840, for T30 children;
averzge abtendanae, 505 Miss Maggls Cildwall misireas

. 'Dhintith agmes, sedth & ragls!rar ot blrths

&>deaths for Rixton o
Hephsrd Famey, Iamfer
H oughton Joseph, farmer, Holes Lsne frm
Ioughton ’L‘hom, farmer, Haslam tarm,
Lythgos Thoma:, armer .
Platt Brothers, fermers .
. Platt Peter, formeg N .
Platt Thomas, tarmer .
Stuvba John, fa .

Walnwright Brok em, Yarmers ‘.
R Warbuzbon Tedao (Km. , farmer |

]

. MARﬂNSOROFT. . .

Bolton Fdwdd, shopkeoper e .
Caldwrsll S@rzh‘( °’3), ﬁrmer '
Ellam Bamual, market gardener, .

: . Fn!rhmt Qharles mmer ’
Howard At dwygogs'r&\t. lod ] A “2 fiil? a uﬁ? !
OWAL 133 » Woolelon (] anig no & HMlisses), formers
Lowe Rev, Joseph (Gathollc} & ﬁas:eg cb‘ $ 3{'::1911 .
coMMERoL, l}ﬁ:g; Gmrl b3, fﬁmer, Jun!ps.s; ;o%g&
.‘Blbb Jemes & Tohn baskeb roekers Mlsa £ooer,, Post offce
(‘lar{ Agron, { farmer | mﬂe{t'i Noah hrna)é & e

(.nuper Fligmas {éxors, o briok‘mukem Orett MWilifam, wheatwrl hy
Daintith; Hepry, Rape & ch hor 2,H Taylor Robcﬂ:,max'keb gudemr



KELLY’S DIRECTORY, 1924

.

WOOLSTON with MARTINSCROTT Is s talnt townablp on
the rond from Werrington fo Ttanohéster, abont .3 miles eaut
trom ‘Warrington Ceatral station, ‘The Woolaton mew cub s o
candl ovan & mile In lenglh, belonglug to the Bridgeyater
imdertaking, of ke Manchester Sitlp Cansl Coi Thé Romen
Gatholto chapsl ab Woalston, brilt in ~183¢, snd dediested to

Peter, §o & srructuve of briok in the Qathle siyls, and hay
%n aimd windows' it will seat ghbut 900, perzons. The
Innd fu ohlafy held in shall holdlngs, 'The sres la 3,670 souves
af lapd and 47 of waber; rateAble velue, £4,6825 tha tpopnla-
Jop,in 921 wan 4581, . . K

\ .

. JCARTINSCROFT, on the banks bl the rlver Meue{, {a

gb ot hall & mile south from Woeolston. Thers it o Wesleydn

hodlat chapel, built in 1837, .

Pokt. Offge.~Mirs Barah Kassey pub-postmistresn,  Ymttane
through Werrington, Padgste .,h tha .pesrest money order
gxgce, & Warrjngton, 2% miles distant, the nearert telegzaph

o8 .

... ' sbREOOLS, . .
Pebllo Blementary, < Woclton (mixed), botls {n 1885, for! 180
thilarens Bichard Byder, ‘mazier, o
Boman Oathollo, Ma nactolt (mixad), build la 1840, for 10
‘.ohudmn; mla_- EHzabeth H}lleq, migtrers®

. .

8 sk s

- WOOLSTON.
Gibsoh Rrank, ‘Warednblli . :
Howard Alfred W..Waoliton lodgs '
Peaker Isagg, Thornhjll '
ity Jovn D e

y John 1.}, haeket xaaker
,Bibby Jossph, ehoi:keenet, & post office
Clack Asion, farmir *
Orank' Ssralt (Mles), rafrsshment roords
Painiith Herhert, blgoksmied ’
Talatith Herbert, Bope'& Anchor PH .
Rorster Joseph, Son & Co. Lid, lanners.

TX
Garnslt W, Bdwd, farmer, Haslom Javn
Hepherd Jdines, farnfer
Yea Jobn, fermet,’ Well farkn .
Tythgos Frederick & Thomas,, farviera
“Piatt Ernéat & <Davld, daxmers
Platt. Jonathan, facper * .
Platt Witllam, farmer, Woolstona halt
Biobby John,farper
Walnwright Thomay, farmsr .
Warbarton Hy, li_irmer, Holey Tana farm

' MARTINGCROBE,
COMMERCIAL. o

Feunatt Allce (drn), farmer -
Eilam, Dovid, mirket gardensr
guuter E?b"'g'd lan}wt ol ot

0950 oxander, farmer, Junipse {0
Musé’y‘ Vidholas, ‘eavmer T " &
Maasey NWicholes, Hores & Jookey B.E
Wasasy, %uah (36tra), grooer, FPoat offlee
Mdssey Willtlam, {armer . «
Budlow & & J. farmers o .

.

.
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POPULATION SUMMARY 1801 ~ 1 971

Woolston with Martiﬁs croft

1801 ‘ 542
1811 : 562
1821 596
1831 - 578
1841 548
1851 516
1861 496
1871 501
1881 504
1891 - 498
1901 484
1911 , 489
1921 456
1931 537
1951 2375
1961 3434
1971 5570

The increase between 1931 and 1951 was due to the building
of new housing. This continued into the 1960s. :
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ORDNANCE SURVEY 1: 10,000 MAP, 1984-87 . .
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WOOLSTON WITH MARTINSCROFT

Reading List
(all available at Warrington Libraxy)
Books
CARTER, G A )
Warrington and the Mid-Mersey Valley.

T J Morten, Didsbury, 1971
Includes a number of references to Woolston.

CHESHIRE FEDERATION OF WOMEN’S INSTITUTES
The Cheshire Village Book.
Countryside Books, Newbury & CFWI, Chester, 1990
Local history and reminiscence from Woolston on p243-4,

DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT
List of Buildings of Special Architectural or Historic Interest: Borough of
Warrington, Cheshire, (Parishes of Croft, " , . Rixton with Glazebrook, and
Woolston.)
DOE, 1983
Woolston is covered on p15-16. Gives approximate date, architect where
known, and features of metit,

WOOLSTON PARISH COUNCIL
Woolston 74 Year Book.
Sproden Press, Warrington, 1974
Inecludes a—:brief history of Woolstonby T Lloyd Morgan.

YARWOOD, Derek ) .
Quttages ~ Fatal and Other, A Chronicle of Cheshire Crime, 1612-1912.
Didsbury Press, Manchestet, 1991
The murder of James Hogworth by BEdward Miles at ‘Woolston in 1791 is
covered on p31-45. This was the case associated with the gibbet-irons now on
display in Warrington Museurn. : .-

Pamphlets
ANON .
Land Tax . .. Woolstone (Lancashire).
Unpublished typescript, 1980
Transcripts of the returns for 1785, 1790, 1795, 1800, 1805 and 1815, giving
owners and occupiers of land and amount levied.

DAVIES, Peter-
: How the Church Came to Wo olston.
. (Petet Davies, 197 8)
History of the local Roman Catholic, Methodist and Chuzch of England
churches. ‘ _

\



WARRINGTON NEW TOWN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Wazrrington: A Changing Town.
WNTDC, 1970

~ Introductory booklet: includes details of the industiial estate at Woolston
Grange.

Articles
BEAMONT, William

‘The Fee of Makerfield; with an Account of some of its Loxds, the Barons of
Newton.” - '

Transactions of the Historic Society of. Lanﬁashire and Cheshire,
Volume 24, 1872, p81-130

History of the area, which included Woolston with Martinscroft.

NORTON, P A
“Warrington Water.!

Journal of the Railway and Canal Historical Society, 9 (2), March
1963, p21-26

Includes information on Woolston New Cut.



